

## Comparing the Dibbling and Drilling Techniques in Wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L.) based on the plants' Reproductive and Vegetative Growth

### ABSTRACT

The current investigation was carried out in the Wheat Research Unit's research farm, Dr. Panjabrao Deshmukh Krishi Vidyapeeth, Akola, during the 2017–2018 Rabi seasons. Ten treatments were used in the Factorial Randomized Block design (FRBD) experiment, which was triple-replicated. First factors are varieties V1 (AKAW 4210-6) and V2 (AKAW 4627). Five different sowing techniques were used in the treatments: S1 (drilling at 20 cm @ 100 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>), S2 (drilling at 20 cm @ 50 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>), S3 (dibbling at 15 x 15 cm), S4 (dibbling at 15 x 20 cm), and S5 (dibbling at 20 x 20 cm) as the second component. In comparison to the other type chosen for the study, variety AKAW 4210-6 fared better in terms of growth and reproductive traits. The variety AKAW 4210-6 was shown to be the most profitable. The dibbling method of sowing at 20 x 20 cm helped to improve the grain yield because it significantly increased the growth attributes, such as number of leaves plant<sup>-1</sup>, leaf area plant<sup>-1</sup>, number of effective tillers m<sup>-2</sup>, chlorophyll content index (%), and dry matter accumulation plant<sup>-1</sup> (g), when compared to the drilling technique of sowing.

**Key Words:** Sowing methods, dibbling, drilling, vegetative growth, Wheat

### INTRODUCTION

Wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L.) is the most important food grain in the world. Wheat farming's contribution to humanity's growing power as a land-mass colonizer is its most noteworthy feature. More land is used for Wheat production worldwide than for any other crop. The United States, Russia, China, Australia, Germany, France, Argentina, and India are the world's top producers of Wheat. One of the most popular cereal grains and a staple food in the world, Wheat is a member of the *Poaceae* family and is grown extensively for its seeds. One of the most extensively grown crops in the world, Wheat comes in top place, followed by Rice. With a global production of 761 million tons in 2020, wheat surpassed Maize as the most produced cereal (FAO, 2014). The states that have grown the most Wheat in the nation include Uttar Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, Punjab, Rajasthan, Bihar, Haryana, West Bengal, Maharashtra, and Gujarat. Uttar Pradesh produces the most wheat and has the greatest acreage in India (Anonymous, 2016). Because of its large area, high productivity, and leading position in the global food grain trade, Wheat is frequently referred to as the "King of Cereals" (FAO, 2017). Nearly 90 % of the country's Wheat acreage is planted to *Triticum aestivum*, the most important species, *Triticum durum* (8–9%) and *Triticum dicoccum* (<1%) are next in line. Twenty percent of human calories come from wheat (Khichar and Nivas, 2007). The nutritional content of Wheat is comparable to that of other significant cereals. Compared to other cereals, it has higher protein content. Niacin and thiamine, which are particularly important, are found in relatively high concentrations in Wheat.

**Commented [U1]:** Include how this study advance existing knowledge on sowing technique.

**Commented [U2]:** Variety

**Commented [U3]:** Replace quantitatively like "yield increase by x%"

**Commented [U4]:** By what percentage?

Inadequate sowing techniques can result in unproductive crops. Later, Bakht et al. (2011) found that the crop's yield per unit area decreased as a result of the smaller ears and overall size, as well as its increased susceptibility to lodging, pests, and diseases. Among the sowing techniques, dibbling is one that works best on soil that is suitable for it. Using this technique, a seed is planted in a shallow hole and covered with soil that is close by (Rehman et al., 1993). The dibbling method is a highly effective way to employ sun energy for sowing that can withstand drought. It is typically employed in areas where harrowing and plowing are challenging. According to Luo et al. (2016), dibbling is primarily utilized by small-scale farmers and is thought to take more time than drilling and other traditional sowing techniques because it is done by hand. Due of its consistent population per unit area, drilling is a recommended method of sowing. Tanveer et al. (2003) state that strong germination and uniform stands are anticipated when seeds are planted at a consistent depth and covered with soil. The new, very precise planting pattern has gained popularity in recent years. Instead of planting all the seeds in a line, as is done with drilling and dibbling, this novel broad precision sowing planting pattern separates the individual grains from one another (Dandan et al., 2013; Bian et al., 2016). Therefore, the use of efficient and effective technologies is the only way to make the shift from subsistence farming to commercial farming (Anonymous, 2009). The regularity with which the specified amount of seed is dispersed throughout the region is the true advantage of mechanical broadcasting over conventional (manual) broadcasting. According to Tahir et al. (2003), the true advantage of drilled crops is a 15% increase in yield, especially for Wheat. The yield of Wheat planted using this method is 15% higher than that of conventional soil preparation methods. Additionally, it is regarded as a great method for preventing water and wind erosion, which helps to retain water in the soil profile (Benites, 2001). Importantly, compared to a dense population, crops that are sown widely apart frequently mature more slowly. In addition to the ideal seed rate, appropriate sowing techniques should also be taken into account in order to provide farmers with a favorable yield (Mollah et al. 2009). Appropriate seeding techniques increase the availability of resources including nutrients, moisture, and sunlight. Once again, accessibility promotes the appropriate development and construction of the root system from the very beginning of crop growth. In addition to allowing plants to use the available land and other resources more effectively and decisively toward growth and development, sowing techniques ensure good crop establishment and the most advantageous plant population in the field (Singh and Sharma. 2019). Insufficient seeding might result in unproductive crops.

## **MATERIALS AND METHODS**

### **2.1. Experimental Site**

The current study was carried out in the Rabi season of 2017–2018 at the Wheat Research Unit, Dr. Punjabrao Deshmukh Krishi Vidyapeeth, Akola, Maharashtra.

### **2.2. Preparatory tillage operation**

**Commented [U5]:** Clearly articulate the research gap e.g  
“limited study on dibbling at .... and ..... spacing in the region

The experimental area was ploughed with a mold board plough and harrowed twice after the soybean crop was harvested. This made it easier to prepare the seed beds in the designated plots and sow the seeds, which improved crop emergence and plant stand.

### 2.3. Manures and fertilizers application

Farm yard manure at a rate of 5 t ha<sup>-1</sup> was applied to the field in a treatment-wise manner during field preparation. According to the recommended fertilizer dosage (120:60:40 N, P<sub>2</sub>O<sub>5</sub>, and K<sub>2</sub>O kg ha<sup>-1</sup>, respectively), the crop was fertilized with nitrogen, phosphate, and potassium. Urea was used for nitrogen application, single super phosphate for phosphorus, and murate of potash for potassium. Two equal doses of nitrogen were applied: half at the time of sowing and the other half as a top dressing, 30 days after emergence. All unit plots received a full dose of potash and phosphorus at the time of sowing.

### 2.4. Experimental materials and sowing

The Wheat Research Unit, Dr. Panjabrao Deshmukh Krishi Vidyapeeth, Akola, provided the seeds of the Wheat varieties AKAW 4210-6 and AKAW 4627 for use as experimental material. The seeds were drilled 20 cm apart between rows at different seed rates (i.e., 100 kg ha<sup>-1</sup> and 50 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>). Additionally, seeds were dubbed at several plant populations and spacing levels, specifically 15 x 15 cm (4,44,444), 15 x 20 cm (3,33,333), and 20 x 20 cm (2,50,000).

### 2.5. Soil Characteristics

Before the crop was sown, soil samples from 0 to 30 cm depth were gathered from representative marked places that were randomly chosen throughout the experimental area in order to determine the physico-chemical characteristics of the soil. The soil was then carefully mixed to create the composite samples. Mortar and pestle were used to grind the samples and air dries them, in a manner that crushed the aggregate particles without disturbing the final soil sample particles. It was appropriately labeled, packed in canvas bags, and sieved using a 2 mm sieve. The physico-chemical characteristics of the soils in the experimental plot were then analyzed using it.

**Commented [U6]:** Clarify on the factorial arrangement.  
For example " 2 varieties x 5 sowing methods = 10 treatment

**Table 1: Physico-chemical properties of soils of experimental plot.**

Sr. No.	Particulars	Value before sowing	Value after harvest	Analytical method adopted
<b>A. Mechanical composition</b>				
1.	Clay (%)	59.30	59.30	Bouyoucos Hydrometer method (Piper, 1966)
2.	Silt (%)	29.50	29.50	
3.	Sand (%)	11.20	11.20	
4.	Textural Class	Clay	Clay	Textural Triangle
<b>B. Chemical composition</b>				
1.	Available Nitrogen (kg ha <sup>-1</sup> )	228.32	204.52	Alkaline permanganate method (Subbaih and Asija, 1956)
2.	Available phosphorus (kg ha <sup>-1</sup> )	24.80	12.38	Olsen's method (Jackson, 1967)

3.	Available potassium (kg ha <sup>-1</sup> )	369.19	343.59	Flame photometer(Jackson, 1967)
4.	Organic carbon (g kg <sup>-1</sup> )	6.9	4.8	Walkley and Black method (Jackson ,1967)
<b>C. Soil Reaction</b>				
1.	Soil pH	7.48	7.36	Beckman's glass electrode pH meter (Jackson,1967)
2.	Electrical conductivity (dSm <sup>-1</sup> )	0.256	0.242	Electric conductivity bridge (Jackson, 1967)

## 2.6. Observations Collected

For the purpose of documenting the different growth observations, five plants were chosen at random from each unit plot for each treatment in each replication. Table 2 lists the specifics of the observations that were made along with how frequently they occurred.

**Table 2: Details of biometric observations recorded during course of Investigation.**

Sr.No.	Particulars	Frequency	Days After Sowing
<b>A)</b>	<b>Pre –harvest</b>		
1	Emergence count m <sup>-2</sup>	1	10 DAS
2	Final plant population m <sup>-2</sup>	1	At harvest
3	Plant height (cm)	5	20,40,60,80 DAS and at harvest
4	No. of leaves per plant	4	20,40,60,80 DAS
5	No of Effective tillers m <sup>-2</sup>	4	40,60,80 DAS and at harvest
6	Leaf area per plant (dm <sup>2</sup> )	4	20,40,60,80 DAS
7	Dry matter accumulation plant <sup>-1</sup>	5	20,40,60,80 DAS and at harvest
8	Chlorophyll content index	4	20,40,60,80 DAS
9	Flag leaf area per plant (dm <sup>2</sup> ) at flowering	1	At flowering

### 2.6.1 Emergence count (m<sup>-2</sup>)

To determine the mean plant stand, the number of seedlings in an m-2 area was counted and noted ten days following sowing.

### 2.6.2 Final plant population (m<sup>-2</sup>)

To determine the mean final plant stand, the number of seedlings per square meter was counted and noted in the observation unit of each net plot at the time of harvest.

### 2.6.3 Plant height (cm)

From ground level to the length of the fully opened top leaf at 20-day intervals, the height of five chosen and labeled plants from each observation unit of one m<sup>2</sup> area was measured in centimeters. The height of the plant was measured up to the base of the ear head after it emerged.

### 2.6.4 Number of functional leaves plant<sup>-1</sup>

Up to harvest, the mean number of functioning leaves from the five randomly chosen observation plants was calculated.

### 2.6.5 Leaf area plant<sup>-1</sup> (dm<sup>2</sup>)

The length and breadth approach was used to calculate the leaf area. Factor 0.65 was applied to it (Lazarow, 1965). Leaf area measurements were taken at 20, 40, 60, and 80 DAS. The unit of leaf area was dm<sup>2</sup>.

$$\text{Leaf area (dm}^2\text{) of each leaf in middle tiller} = L \times W \times K$$

Where,

L = Maximum length of leaf

W = Maximum width of leaf

K= Adjustment factor (0.65)

#### **2.6.6 Number of effective tillers ( $\text{m}^{-2}$ )**

The total number of tillers, including the main shoot, from each observation unit of one  $\text{m}^{-2}$  area was counted 20 days before to harvest in order to determine the number of tillers per plant.

#### **2.6.7 Dry matter accumulation $\text{plant}^{-1}$ (g)**

A plant was chosen at random from each plot, removed with its roots, and allowed to air dry before being oven-dried for 48 hours at  $65^{\circ}\text{C}$  and above. The weight of the plant was then determined. To determine the total dry matter per plant, the weight of each plant was recorded separately for the distribution of dry matter and then added together.

#### **2.6.8 Chlorophyll content index (%)**

The chlorophyll content meter CCM-200 (Opti-sciences) was used to measure the plant's chlorophyll content index (%). The observations were made every 20 days till 80 DAS.

#### **2.6.9 Flag leaf area ( $\text{cm}^{-2}$ )**

The length and breadth approach was used to calculate the leaf area per plant. At the flag leaf stage, it was multiplied by a factor of 0.65.

### **3.7. Statistical analysis and interpretation of data**

Using basic statistical techniques of analysis of variance, the computer-programmed Factorial Randomized Block Design was used to examine the experimental data acquired throughout the inquiry (Gomez and Gomez, 1984). In any case, the results were significant, and the comparison of treatment means was done with a critical difference estimated at the  $P = 0.05$  level. Wherever interaction effect data are deemed important, they are displayed. The consequences of the treatment are appropriately displayed in tables and depicted in charts and graphs.

**Commented [U7]:** Specify the software/tool used, and justify the choice of FRBD

## **RESULTS AND DISCUSSION**

The findings are addressed with a thorough grasp of how different elements, including as spacing and sowing techniques, relate to the crop's vegetative growth. Additionally, the outcomes are backed up by relevant facts and logical reasoning. When the plant was sown using the dibbling method at  $20 \times 20$  cm, the following growth parameters exhibited a substantial increase: plant height (cm), number of leaves  $\text{plant}^{-1}$ , leaf area  $\text{plant}^{-1}$ , number of effective tillers  $\text{m}^{-2}$ , chlorophyll content index (%), and dry matter accumulation  $\text{plant}^{-1}$  (g).

#### **4.1 Plant height (cm)**

At every step of the crop growth period, the difference in plant height caused by different kinds was shown to be substantial (Table 3). The plant height of variety AKAW 4210-6 (V1) was noticeably higher than that of variety AKAW-4627 (V2). It could be caused by the genotype's genetic components. At every stage of the crop growth cycle, there was a considerable difference in plant height caused by varied seeding techniques. Up until harvest, the plant height was significantly highest with sowing method S1 (drilling @  $100 \text{ kg ha}^{-1}$ ), followed by treatment S2 (drilling @  $50 \text{ kg ha}^{-1}$ ). 15 cm by 15 cm (dibbling) S3 Both S4-15 and S5-20 x 20 cm (dibbling)

are available. High plant density may be the cause, as it promotes competition among plants for resources. Throughout the experiment, it was determined that the interaction between varieties and seeding techniques was not significant. Dingkuhn et al. (1999), Singh et al. (2003), Abd El-Lattief (2014), and Shahzad et al. (2007) also corroborated this conclusion.

**Table 3: Plant height (cm) as influenced by various treatments in wheat crop**

Treatments	Plant height (cm)				
	20 DAS	40 DAS	60 DAS	80 DAS	AT Harvest
<b>Varieties</b>					
V <sub>1</sub> - AKAW-4210-6	20.64	40.09	58.98	80.32	83.43
V <sub>2</sub> - AKAW 4627	19.71	38.28	56.77	78.35	82.40
S.E. (m) ±	0.19	0.33	0.53	0.15	0.15
C.D. at 5%	0.57	0.99	1.57	0.46	0.47
<b>Sowing Method</b>					
S <sub>1</sub> - Drilling @ 100 kg/ha	21.24	42.20	60.03	81.42	87.00
S <sub>2</sub> -Drilling @ 50 kg/ha	20.99	40.31	59.46	80.76	85.00
S <sub>3</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 15 cm spacing	20.03	38.21	57.18	78.59	81.50
S <sub>4</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 20 cm spacing	19.64	38.00	56.72	78.12	80.50
S <sub>5</sub> -Dibbling at 20 x 20 cm spacing	18.98	37.23	55.98	77.81	80.58
S.E. (m) ±	0.30	0.52	0.83	0.24	0.25
C.D. at 5%	0.90	1.56	2.49	0.74	0.74
<b>Interaction (V x S)</b>					
S.E. (m) ±	0.43	0.74	1.18	0.35	0.35
C.D. at 5%	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS
GM	20.17	39.19	57.87	79.34	82.91

#### 4.2. Number of functional leaves plant<sup>-1</sup>

Table 4's results demonstrated that at every stage of crop growth, treatment changes brought on by different seeding techniques were shown to be significant. In comparison to all other owing methods at 20, 40, 60, and 80 DAS, dibbling at a spacing of 20 x 20 cm (S5) recorded the highest number of leaves per plant<sup>-1</sup>. At 20, 40, 60, and 80 DAS, treatment S5 was also shown to be comparable to S3 (dibbling at 15 x 15 cm) and S4 (dibbling at 15 x 20). Wider row spacing may result in more leaves per plant, which could be caused by more tillers per plant.

Due to enhanced plant spacing and even resource distribution, which improve light interception and photosynthetic efficiency, the drilled method of sowing typically produces more functioning leaves than other methods of planting wheat. At every stage of crop growth, the interaction between cultivars and seeding technique was not significant. Meena et al. achieved similar outcomes (2021).

**Table 4: Number of functional leaves plant<sup>-1</sup> as influenced by different treatments in wheat**

Treatments	Number of leaves plant <sup>-1</sup>			
	20 DAS	40 DAS	60 DAS	80 DAS
<b>Varieties</b>				
V <sub>1</sub> - AKAW-4210-6	5.04	20.16	25.12	19.61
V <sub>2</sub> - AKAW 4627	3.34	18.42	23.12	17.71
S.E. (m) ±	0.19	0.20	0.23	0.23
C.D. at 5%	0.58	0.60	0.70	0.70

Sowing Method				
S <sub>1</sub> -Drilling @ 100kg /ha	3.38	16.25	20.71	15.15
S <sub>2</sub> -Drilling @50 kg/ha	3.56	17.69	21.60	16.10
S <sub>3</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 15 cm spacing	4.16	20.43	25.76	20.25
S <sub>4</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 20 cm spacing	4.83	20.99	26.01	20.42
S <sub>5</sub> -Dibbling at 20 x 20 cm spacing	5.02	21.10	26.56	21.41
S.E. (m) ±	0.31	0.32	0.37	0.37
C.D. at 5%	0.92	0.96	1.12	1.12
Interaction (V x S)				
S.E. (m) ±	0.43	0.45	0.53	0.53
C.D. at 5%	NS	NS	NS	NS
GM	4.19	19.29	24.12	18.66

#### 4.4. Leaf area plant<sup>-1</sup>(dm<sup>-2</sup>)

It's noteworthy that variety V1 (AKAW 4210-6) recorded a much larger leaf area than variety V2 (AKAW 4627), as seen in Table 5. The genetic composition and tillering capacity of that variety may be the cause of variations in leaf area per plant. At every stage of crop growth, treatment variance resulting from different seeding techniques was found to be substantial. Compared to all other sowing methods, strategy S5 (dibbling at 20 × 20 cm) produced a much higher maximum leaf area plant<sup>-1</sup>. Likewise, drilling at 50 kg ha<sup>-1</sup> (S2), drilling at 100 kg ha<sup>-1</sup> (S1), and dibbling at 15 x 20 cm spacing (S4) were found to be better than drilling at 15 x 15 cm (S3). A wider space wheat crop may have a greater leaf area per plant due to an increase in the number of tiller plants per plant in addition to the leaves. According to Dwyer et al. (1999), population growth increased them per unit area but decreased the leaf area index plant<sup>-1</sup>. Sharifi et al. (2011) have confirmed similar findings. Following sowing methods S1 (drilling at 100 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>), S2 (drilling at 50 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>), S4 (dibbling at 15 x 20 cm), and S5 (dibbling at 20 x 20 cm), S3 (15 x 15 cm) reported a noticeably higher number of tiller m<sup>-2</sup>. At 40, 60, 80, and harvest, S1 (100 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>) was also found to be significant compared to S2 (drilling at 50 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>), S4 (dibbling 15 x 20 cm), and S5 (dibbling 20 x 20 cm). Maintaining the ideal row spacing may improve wheat yield and maximize tillering capacity. The main cause of the yield increase is the rise in the number of productive tillers per square meter. Similar findings also supported by Singh and Srivastava (1991), Ayaz *et al.* (1999), Thorsted *et al.* (2006); Ali *et al.* (2010); Iqbal *et al.* (2010) and Hussain *et al.* (2012). Interaction effects was non significant at all stages of crop growth.

**Table 5: Leaf area plant<sup>-1</sup> as influenced by different treatment in wheat**

Treatments	Leaf Area Plant <sup>-1</sup> (dm <sup>2</sup> )			
	20 DAS	40 DAS	60 DAS	80 DAS
Varieties				
V <sub>1</sub> - AKAW-4210-6	0.22	2.65	3.91	2.76
V <sub>2</sub> - AKAW 4627	0.21	2.57	3.80	2.73
S.E. (m) ±	0.008	0.01	0.006	0.009
C.D. at 5%	NS	0.05	0.018	0.028
Sowing Method				
S <sub>1</sub> -Drilling @ 100kg /ha	0.19	2.03	3.62	2.32
S <sub>2</sub> -Drilling @50 kg/ha	0.20	2.14	3.70	2.34
S <sub>3</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 15 cm spacing	0.23	2.80	3.93	2.96

Commented [U8]: Use consistent decimal place

S <sub>4</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 20 cm spacing	0.24	2.98	3.98	3.03
S <sub>5</sub> -Dibbling at 20 x 20 cm spacing	0.23	3.11	4.06	3.08
S.E. (m) ±	0.013	0.026	0.009	0.015
C.D. at 5%	NS	0.08	0.023	0.04
Interaction (V x S)				
S.E. (m) ±	0.019	0.038	0.029	0.021
C.D. at 5%	NS	NS	NS	NS
GM	0.22	2.61	3.85	2.74

#### 4.4. Number of effective tillers (m<sup>-2</sup>)

At every stage, the quantity of tillers m<sup>-2</sup> was greatly impacted by the varieties. According to Table 6, variation V1 (AKAW 4210-6) had a noticeably greater number of tillers m<sup>-2</sup> than variety V2 (AKAW 4627). Varieties may differ in the number of tillers per square meter depending on their environmental factors, soil type, and genetic makeup. Variations in sowing techniques had a major impact on the number of tillers m<sup>-2</sup> at every stage of crop development. Following sowing methods S1 (drilling at 100 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>), S2 (drilling at 50 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>), S4 (dibbling at 15 x 20 cm), and S5 (dibbling at 20 x 20 cm), treatment S3 (15 x 15 cm) recorded a noticeably higher number of tiller m<sup>-2</sup>. S1 (100 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>) was also found to be more important than S2 (50 kg ha<sup>-1</sup> drilling), S4 (dibbling 15 x 20 cm), and S5 (dibbling 20 x 20 cm) at 40, 60, 80, and harvest. Maintaining the ideal row spacing can improve tillering capacity and perhaps increase wheat output. Increases in the number of productive tillers per square meter are the main cause of the yield increase. Similar conclusions were also confirmed by Singh and Srivastava (1991), Ayaz et al. (1999), Thorsted et al. (2006), Ali et al. (2010), Iqbal et al. (2010) and Hussain et al. (2012), Throughout the whole crop growth cycle, interaction effects were not significant.

**Table 6: Number of Effective tillers influenced by various treatments in wheat**

Treatments	Number of Effective Tillers m <sup>-2</sup>			
	40 DAS	60 DAS	80 DAS	At Harvest
Varieties				
V <sub>1</sub> - AKAW-4210-6	88.4	85.8	80.0	72.06
V <sub>2</sub> - AKAW 4627	84.0	81.6	74.8	64.53
S.E. (m) ±	0.20	0.16	0.24	1.32
C.D. at 5%	0.61	0.48	0.71	3.93
Sowing Method				
S <sub>1</sub> -Drilling @ 100kg /ha	91.5	89.5	84.0	71.83
S <sub>2</sub> -Drilling @50 kg/ha	79.5	78.0	72.0	67.83
S <sub>3</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 15 cm spacing	105	102	95.0	86.0
S <sub>4</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 20 cm spacing	78.5	76.0	70.5	59.33
S <sub>5</sub> -Dibbling at 20 x 20 cm spacing	76.0	73.0	65.5	56.5
S.E. (m)±	0.32	0.25	0.38	2.09
C.D. at 5%	0.96	0.76	1.13	6.22
Interaction (V x S)				
S.E. (m) ±	0.45	0.36	0.54	2.96
C.D. at 5%	NS	NS	NS	NS
GM	86.2	83.7	77.4	68.3



#### 4.5. Dry matter accumulation plant<sup>-1</sup> (g)

It's interesting to note that, according to Table 7, effect of varieties on dry matter accumulation shown significant effect during overall observation period. Variety V<sub>1</sub> (AKAW 4210-6) recorded significant higher dry matter accumulation over variety V<sub>2</sub> (AKAW4627). Treatment S<sub>5</sub> (dibbling at 20 x 20 cm) recorded significantly higher dry matter accumulation over rest of the treatments. Similarly, treatment S<sub>5</sub> was found to be at par with treatment S<sub>3</sub> (dibbling at 15 x 15 cm) S<sub>4</sub> (dibbling at 15 x 20 cm). Similarly, treatment S<sub>3</sub> was followed by S<sub>1</sub> (drilling @ 100 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>) and S<sub>2</sub> (drilling @ 50 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>). Higher dry matter accumulation in wider spacing might be due to better tillering response of wheat crop than that of narrow spacing. Interaction effect could not reach up to the level of significance. The results are in close conformity with those already reported by Jalota et al. (2006), Sarwar et al. (2010), Kharrou et al. (2011), Said and Amen (2016) and Kumar et al. (2019).

**Table 7: Dry matter accumulation (g) as influenced by different treatments in wheat.**

Treatments	Dry Matter Accumulation plant <sup>-1</sup> (g)				
	20 DAS	40 DAS	60 DAS	80 DAS	At Harvest
Varieties					
V <sub>1</sub> - AKAW-4210-6	0.24	6.33	19.70	37.22	46.31
V <sub>2</sub> - AKAW 4627	0.22	4.34	17.45	35.42	44.74
S.E. (m) ±	0.003	0.19	0.22	0.21	0.41
C.D. at 5%	0.009	0.56	0.67	0.64	1.23
Sowing Method					
S <sub>1</sub> -Drilling @ 100kg /ha	0.21	4.69	16.59	34.02	43.05
S <sub>2</sub> -Drilling @ 50 kg/ha	0.22	4.94	17.22	34.51	43.46
S <sub>3</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 15 cm spacing	0.24	5.42	19.30	37.12	46.44
S <sub>4</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 20 cm spacing	0.24	5.61	19.52	37.96	47.33
S <sub>5</sub> -Dibbling at 20 x 20 cm spacing	0.25	6.02	20.25	38.01	47.37
S.E. (m) ±	0.004	0.30	0.35	0.34	0.65
C.D. at 5%	0.014	0.89	1.06	1.01	1.95
Interaction (V x S)					
S.E. (m) ±	0.006	0.42	0.50	0.48	0.93

#### 4.6. Chlorophyll content Index (%)

At every observation day, variations caused significant disparities (Table 8). Varieties V<sub>1</sub> (AKAW 4210-6) and V<sub>2</sub> (AKAW 4627) were shown to be superior. The genetic composition of that genotype, light interception, water availability, and soil fertility could all be contributing factors to variations in the chlorophyll index (%) of different types. Compared to all other sowing techniques, Treatment S<sub>5</sub> (dibbling at 20 × 20 cm) outperformed them from 20 DAS to 80 DAS. Treatment S<sub>5</sub> was also shown to be comparable to treatments S<sub>3</sub> and S<sub>4</sub> (dibbling at 15 x 15 cm and 15 x 20 cm, respectively). Similar to treatment S<sub>3</sub>, S<sub>1</sub> (drilling @ 100 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>) and S<sub>2</sub> (drilling @ 50 kg ha<sup>-1</sup>) came after S<sub>3</sub>. Excessive plant density promotes competition among plants for resources. Less light penetration in the crop canopy and increased competition for

Commented [U9]: Add space

Commented [U10]: Add space

available nutrients will therefore impact the crop net photosynthesis process by influencing the plant's ability to translocate food material, which will result in a larger accumulation of photosynthesis. Weber et al. (1966) supported similar findings. At every stage of crop growth, the interaction impact was not significant.

Commented [U11]: no significant interaction observed

**Table 8: Chlorophyll content Index (%) as influenced by different treatments of wheat.**

Treatments	Chlorophyll content Index (%)			
	20 DAS	40 DAS	60 DAS	80 DAS
<b>Varieties</b>				
V <sub>1</sub> - AKAW-4210-6	22.00	27.17	36.54	25.16
V <sub>2</sub> - AKAW 4627	21.00	26.00	35.61	23.77
S.E. (m) ±	0.07	0.14	0.13	0.14
C.D. at 5%	0.29	0.42	0.38	0.42
<b>Sowing Method</b>				
S <sub>1</sub> -Drilling @ 100kg /ha	18.96	24.76	34.31	23.14
S <sub>2</sub> -Drilling @50 kg/ha	19.06	24.96	34.50	23.18
S <sub>3</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 15 cm spacing	20.19	27.43	36.93	25.14
S <sub>4</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 20 cm spacing	20.23	27.69	37.46	25.38
S <sub>5</sub> -Dibbling at 20 x 20 cm spacing	20.39	28.12	37.51	25.51
S.E. (m) ±	0.15	0.22	0.21	0.22
C.D. at 5%	0.46	0.67	0.63	0.66
<b>Interaction (V x S)</b>				
S.E. (m) ±	0.21	0.32	0.30	0.31
C.D. at 5%	NS	NS	NS	NS
GM	21.50	26.59	36.14	24.47

#### 4.7. Flag leaf area plant<sup>-1</sup>

The findings presented in Table 9 demonstrated that, over the whole observation period, the effects of varieties on flag leaf area plant<sup>-1</sup> were substantial. The flag leaf area plant<sup>-1</sup> of variety V<sub>1</sub> (AKAW 4210-6) was much higher than that of variety V<sub>2</sub> (AKAW 4627). For the remaining treatments, the maximum flag leaf area plant<sup>-1</sup> was recorded using the S<sub>5</sub> sowing method (dibbling at 20 x 20 cm). Techniques like as wider-spread seeding, which improves individual plant growth and lowers computation, boost the photosynthetic capacity in the flag leaf area, and ultimately increase grain output. The interaction impact was not significant over the entire crop growth cycle. The findings of Meena et al. (2021) were comparable.

**Table 9: Flag leaf area plant<sup>-1</sup> (dm<sup>2</sup>) of wheat as affected by varieties and sowing method.**

Treatments	Flag leaf area plant <sup>-1</sup> (dm <sup>2</sup> )
	At flowering
<b>Varieties</b>	
V <sub>1</sub> - AKAW-4210-6	0.55
V <sub>2</sub> - AKAW 4627	0.50
S.E. (m) ±	0.005
C.D. at 5%	0.015
<b>Sowing Method</b>	
S <sub>1</sub> - Drilling @100 kg/ha	0.49

S <sub>2</sub> -Drilling @50 kg/ha	0.50
S <sub>3</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 15 cm spacing	0.54
S <sub>4</sub> -Dibbling at 15 x 20 cm spacing	0.54
S <sub>5</sub> -Dibbling at 20 x 20 cm spacing	0.55
S.E.(m) ±	0.008
C.D. at 5%	0.023
<b>Interaction (V x S)</b>	
S.E. (m) ±	0.011
C.D. at 5%	NS
GM	0.52

## CONCLUSION

At every stage of crop growth, treatment variance resulting from different seeding techniques was found to be substantial. Compared to all other sowing methods, strategy S5 (dibbling at 20 × 20 cm) produced a much higher maximum leaf area plant<sup>-1</sup>. In a similar vein, drilling @50 kg ha<sup>-1</sup> (S2) and drilling @100 kg ha<sup>-1</sup> (S1) were found to be inferior to dibbling at 15 x 20 cm spacing (S4). The drilled method of sowing usually yields more functioning leaves than other methods of planting in wheat, which is ultimately beneficial for the more production of photosynthesis phenomenon which leads to the more accumulation of photosynthets which converts into more grain production in the wheat plants. This is due to improved light interception and photosynthetic efficiency, which is improved by enhanced plant spacing and even resource distribution.

## REFERENCES

- Abd El-Lattief EA. 2014. Determining the optimization seeding rate for improved productivity of wheat under Southern Egypt conditions. *Inter. J. Agron. Agri. Res.* 4(1):47-57. Available: <https://www.academia.edu/6045789>
- Ali, M.; L. Ali, M. Sattar and M. A. Ali, 2010. Improvement in wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L.) yield by manipulating seed rate and row spacing in Vehari zone. *J. animal & plant sci.* 20(4): 225-230.
- Anonymous 2016. Directorate of Wheat Development Ministry of Agriculture Ghaziabad- 201002 (U.P.)
- Ayaz, S.; P. Shah, H.M. Sharif and I. Ali, 1999. Yield, yield components and other important agronomic traits of wheat as affected by seed rate and planting geometry. *Sarhad J. Agric.* 15:255-262.
- Bakht, J.; Shafi, M.; Rehman, H.; Uddin, R.; Anwar, S. 2011. Effect of planting methods on growth, phenology and yield of maize varieties. *Pak. J. Bot.* 43, 1629–1633.
- Bian, C.; Ma, C.; Liu, X.; Gao, C.; Liu, Q.; Yan, Z.; Ren, Y.; Li, Q. 2016. Responses of winter wheat yield and water use efficiency to irrigation frequency and planting pattern. *PLoS ONE*, 11, e0154673. [CrossRef]
- Dandan, Z.; Jiayin, S.; Kun, L.; Quanru, L.; Quanqi, L. 2013. Effects of irrigation and wide-precision planting on water use, radiation interception, and grain yield of winter wheat in the North China Plain. *Agric. Water Manag.* 118, 87–92. [CrossRef]

- Dingkuhn M, Asch F. 1999. Phonological responses of *Oryza sativa*, *O. glaberrima* and inter-specific rice cultivars on a toposquence in West Africa. *Euphytica*.; 110(2):109-26. DOI:<https://doi.org/10.1023/A:1003790611929>
- FAO. 2014. United Nations, Food and Agriculture Organization, Statistics Division (FAOSTAT). 2014.
- FAO. 2017. Production-Crops, Food & Agriculture Organization of the United Nations.
- Gomez, K.A. and A.A. Gomez, 1984. Statistical procedure for Agric. Research. An International Rice Research Institute book. A Wiley- Interscience public., New York (U.S). pp:99-101.
- Hussain, M.; Z. Mehamood, M.B. Khan, F. Shahid, L. D. Jin and M. Farooq, 2012. Narrow row spacing ensures high productivity of low tillering wheat cultivars. *Inter. J. Agric. & bio.* 14(3): 413-418.
- Hussain, M.Z., M.A. Hossain, M.P. Anwar, M.R.A. Sarkar and A.A. Manum .2003. Performance of BRRI Dhan 32 in SRI and conventional methods and their technology mixes. *Pakistan J. Agron.* 2(4):195-200
- Iqbal N.; M. Ali, M. Sattar and L. Ali, 2010. Effect of seed rate and row spacing on the yield and yield components of wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L.) *J. Agric. Res.* 48(2):151-156.
- Jalota, S.K., Sood, A., Chahal, G.B.S. and Choudhury, B.U. 2006. Crop water productivity of cotton (*Gossypium hirsutum* L.)– wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L.) system as influenced by deficit irrigation, soil texture and precipitation. *Agricultural Water Management.* 84 : 137–146.
- Kharrou, H., Er-Raki, S., Chehbouni, A., Duchemin, B., Simonneaux, V., LePage, M., Ouzine, L. and Jarlan, L. 2011. Water use efficiency and yield of winter wheat under different irrigation regimes in a semi arid region. *Agricultural Sciences.* 2: 273–282.
- Khichar, M .L. and R.Niwas.2007. Thermal effect on growth and yield of wheat under Different sowing environments and planting systems. *Indian J. Agric. Res.* 41(2): 92-96.
- Kumar, S., Sharma, P.K., Yadav, M.R., Sexena, R., Gupta K.C., Kumar, R., Garg, N.K. and Yadav, H.L. 2019. Effect of irrigation levels and moisture conserving polymers on growth, productivity and profitability of wheat. *Indian Journal of Agricultural Sciences.* 89 (3): 509–514.
- Luo, H.; Hai, J.; Bai, Y.; Shao, Y.; Ping, Y. 2016. Effect of Dibbling Cultivation on Physiological Characteristics and Dry Matter Accumulation of Winter Wheat. *Acta Agric. Boreali-Occident. Sin.* 6, 841–848.
- Meena RL, Solanki NS, Rao SS, Singh RS, Kaushik MK, Meena RH, Meena RB and Meena RS 2021. The effects of sowing methods, irrigation scheduling and agrochemicals on growth and yield parameters of Wheat under late sown condition. *The Pharma Innovation Journal.* 10(9):351-355.
- Mollah M, Bhuiya M, Kabir M. 2009. Bed Planting A New Crop Establishment Method for Wheat in Rice-Wheat Cropping System. *J. Agric. R. Dev.*;7:23-31.
- Rahman, M.; Islam, M.; Islam, 1993. M. Effect of sowing methods and seed rates on production parameters and average chemical composition of fodder maize cv. Savar-1. *Asian-Australas. J. Anim. Sci.*, 6, 123–126. [CrossRef]
- Sarwar, N., Maqsood, M., Mubeen, K., Shehzad, M., Bhullar, M.S., Qamar, R. and Akbar, N. 2010. Effect of different levels of irrigation on yield and yield components of wheat cultivars. *Pakistan Journal of Agricultural Sciences.* 47: 371-374.

- Said Mohamed and Ameen F. 2016. Effect of Sowing Methods and Micro elements Foliar Application on Bread Wheat Productivity and their Economical Feasibility. *Egyptian Journal of Agronomy*, 38:225-240.
- Shahzad M. A, Sahi S T, Khan, M M, Ahmad M. 2007. Effect of sowing dates and seed treatment on grain yield and quality of wheat. *Pakistan Journal of Agricultural Sciences* (Pakistan), 44(4):581-583. Available: <https://www.pakjas.com.pk/papers/254.pdf>.
- Sharifi, R.S.; H.B. Hamlabad and J. Azimi, 2011. Plant population influence on the physiological indices of wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L.) cultivars. *Int. Res. J. plant sci.* 2(5):137-142.
- Singh, V.; S.R. Bhunia and R.E.S. Chauhan, 2003. Response of late sown wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L.) to row spacing-cum-population densities and level of nitrogen and irrigation in north-western Rajasthan. *Indian J. Agron.* 48(3):178-188.
- Singh K, and Sharma R. 2019 Effect of different methods of sowing and row orientation on growth, yield and quality of wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L.). *Agric. Sci. Dig. Res. J.* 39:51-54.
- Singh, R.B. and R.K. Srivastava, 1991. Influence of different spacing on the yield of wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L.) *New Agric.* 1: 147-148.
- Tanveer, S.K.; Hussain, I.; Sohail, M.; Kissana, N.; Abbas, S 2003. Effects of different planting methods on yield and yield components of wheat. *Asian J. Plant Sci.*, 2, 811-813.
- Thorsted, M.D.; J.E. Olsen and J. Weiner, 2006. Width of clover strips and wheat rows influence grain yield in winter wheat/white clover intercropping. *Field Crop Res.* 95: 280-290.
- Weber, C.R., R.M. Shibles and D.E. Byth. 1966. Effect of plant population and row spacing on soyabean development and production. *Agron. J.* 58:99-102.